
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - September 18, 2019

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, September 18, 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the September 4, 2019 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan for a mixed use/rowhouse

redevelopment for the property located at 511 Public Avenue
Attachment

3.b. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from R-4, Moderate-Density Multifamily
Residential, to PUD, Planned Unit Development, for the property located at 511 Public Avenue

3.c. Consideration of Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan for a mixed use/apartment
redevelopment for the property located at 200 West Grand Avenue and 525 Cross Street
Attachment

3.d. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from CBD-1, Central Business District-Core, to
PUD, Planned Unit Development, for the property located at 200 West Grand Avenue and 525
Cross Street

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

5. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/432078/09-04-2019_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/432900/September_18_Staff_Report_3_a__and__b___PUD__511_Public_Ave.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/432937/September_18_Staff_Report_3_c__and__d___PUD__200_W._Grand_Ave.pdf


 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, September 4th, 2019 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Meeting was called to order at 7:00PM. Commissioners Johnson, Weeden, Finnegan, 
Robson, and Councilor Preuschl were present. Commissioners Ruster, Haynes, and 
Faragher were absent.  

 
2. MINUTES 

a. Consideration of the minutes from the August 21, 2019 Plan Commission meeting 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Finnegan 
seconded the motion. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

3. REPORTS 
a. Consideration of a sidewalk easement over property located at 1750 Branigan Rd 

Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the sidewalk easement, seconded by 
Commissioner Robson.  Motion carried, voice vote.   
 

b. Consideration of a three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 
2956 Milwaukee Rd, 2955 Wyetta Dr, 1875 Branigan Rd  
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the CSM, seconded by Commissioner 
Finnegan. Motion carried, voice vote. 

 
c. Consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine the properties 

located 2924 Wyetta Dr and 2951 Kennedy Dr 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

2



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the CSM, seconded by Commissioner 
Johnson. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

d. Consideration of an Extraterritorial two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at 2820 Prairie Ave and 1659 Huebbe Parkway 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the CSM, seconded by Commissioner 
Finnegan. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 
 

e. Consideration of an Extraterritorial three-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at Bartells Drive North of Inman Parkway 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the CSM, seconded by Commissioner 
Finnegan. Motion carried, voice vote. 

 
 

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Julie Christensen stated that TIF 11 was approved and will go to the Joint Review Board for 
final action. Ms. Christensen also mentioned that there are two PUD’s on the next Plan 
Commission Agenda for September 18th for 511 Public Ave for town houses, and 200 W 
Grand for apartment buildings. 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion was made by Commissioner Johnson, seconded by Commissioner Finnegan to 
adjourn the meeting.  Motion passed, voice vote.  Meeting adjourned at 7:30pm. 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 

 
 
 

3



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: September 18, 2019

Agenda Item: 3(a) & (b)

File Number: PUD-2019-04 & ZMA-2019-06

General Information

Applicant: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC

Owner: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC

Address/Location: 511 Public Avenue

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC has submitted an application for review
and consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the mixed use
redevelopment of the vacant parcel located at 511 Public Avenue into fourteen (14) row house units, a small
(2,400 SF) commercial building, and an off-street parking lot. The applicant has also submitted an application
for a Zoning Map Amendment from R-4, Moderate-Density Multifamily Residential District to PUD District.
Although multifamily residential uses are allowed under the current zoning classification, the PUD
classification provides flexibility in building placement and commercial uses on the same parcel.

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process: A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan. PUDs are processed in three stages:
Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final (Site) Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map
Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until
approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.

The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the
adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for
development of the PUD. The PUD Final (Site) Plan is the document upon which building permits and other
applicable approvals are issued. The applicant must submit the detailed and technical information necessary
to demonstrate that all applicable standards, requirements, and conditions have been met.

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: The proposed 3-story row houses in two separate buildings feature small front setbacks
with buildings close to the sidewalk, rear-loaded garage parking, and stone/masonry exterior materials. There
are six rowhouse units along Pleasant Street with a footprint of 5,510 square feet and eight rowhouse units
along Bushnell Street with a footprint of 7,320 square feet. The proposed 1-story, 2,390 square-foot
commercial building is located at the corner of Pleasant Street and Public Avenue, and may be subdivided into
two commercial spaces. Proposed uses include retail, restaurant, or office. The proposed off-street parking
area includes a gated section reserved for access to the row house garages, along with a parking lot that will
serve the applicant’s other nearby developments. The proposed parking lot includes one driveway on Public

4



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

Avenue that will allow the existing bus shelter to remain in its current location.

Existing Site Conditions: The subject property has been vacant and used as a contractor staging area with a
gravel surface since the applicant acquired it in 2016 and demolished the former church structure. The site is
1.15 acres in area and includes frontage upon Public Avenue, Pleasant Street (U.S. Hwy 51), and Bushnell
Street. The site slopes downward from the NE corner towards the SW corner.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The Ironworks Hotel is located to the west of the subject property, and
Hotel Goodwin is located to the south. Both of these hotel properties are zoned Central Business District
(CBD). The Scoville Apartments, which is a mid-rise apartment community, lies to the east and is zoned R-4,
Moderate-Density Multifamily Residential. To the north is the Beloit College campus, which is zoned Public
Lands and Institutions (PLI).

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: In anticipation of the proposed redevelopment, Planning
staff recently submitted an application requesting an amendment to the Downtown Beloit Future Land Use
Map (Map 9) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan, from Institutional to Planned Mixed Use:
Office/Residential above retail. The Plan Commission previously recommended approval of this amendment,
which is scheduled for City Council review on September 17, 2019.

Zoning Ordinance Requirements:
Density/Intensity and Dimensional Standards: The applicant has requested a zero-setback development,
which will allow the commercial building to meet the public sidewalk and the row houses to be setback
approximately 5 feet. This is consistent with the setbacks, or lack thereof, in the Central Business District.
The proposed density is 12 units on 1.15 acres or 10.4 units per acre, which is far less dense than what is
allowed in the current R-4 zoning classification (50 units per acre) and a fraction of the density of the
adjacent Scoville Apartments (92 units per acre). The proposed rowhouse portion of the development
includes approximately 24% of open space, in excess of the 15% required for PUD projects.

Building Design: The proposed commercial building is one story in height and the proposed rowhouse
buildings are three stories in height. There is no maximum height in the existing R-4 zoning district or the
CBD. The proposed rowhouse buildings include stone/masonry exterior materials, rear-loaded double
garages on the first floor, and may include decorative fencing along the street side. The proposed
rowhouse buildings include an urban residential design that will be the first of its kind in Beloit, but is
sorely needed to absorb the strong demand for centrally located, walkable housing in the City Center.
The units are likely to be owner-occupied through a condominium plat and association.

Parking and Loading Requirements: According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, multifamily
dwellings must provide at least 1.5 parking stalls per unit and retail stores must provide at least 1 parking
stall per 250 square feet, which equates to 10 parking stalls for the proposed development. The proposed
rowhouses include attached garages with two stalls, and the proposed parking lot includes at least forty
stalls to be shared by all of the applicant’s nearby developments.

Review Agent Comments: The review agents have reviewed the proposed PUD and offered the following
comments:

• AT&T: There are existing facilities along the North side of Public Avenue. Any relocation will be
compensable.

• Alliant Energy: The gas meter must be at least three feet from all operational windows. The electric
service may require new pedestals in the terrace area.

5



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

• Charter: Service will come from the street side and may be congested with the other utilities. New
pedestals may need to be installed. There is an existing fiber optic cable along the North side of Public
Avenue. Any relocation will be compensable.

• Fire Department: The FDC connection shall be located on the street side in the agreed upon location,
and an approved device or system shall be used to open the rear driveway gate. The final site plan shall
include a fire truck pumping pad in the approved location in the Northwest corner of the parking lot.

• Engineering: The developer will need to comply with DNR water quality standards. Sidewalks shall be
located 12 inches from the lot line. All public sidewalks, whether existing or new, shall meet ADA and
PROWAG standards.

• Public Works: The dumpsters serving the retail building will be serviced by a private hauler. The City is
expected to service the rowhouse units, and the final design shall accommodate the City’s trucks.

PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria: Applications may be approved if the following criteria are met:

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict
application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based on the purpose and intent
of this chapter.
The proposed PUD includes exceptional urban design in the form of mixed uses and building
placement that could not be accomplished in the existing R-4 district.

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300.
The proposed PUD will provide for efficient use of public utilities and vacant land, and will be an
attractive addition to Beloit’s bustling downtown district.

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed;
As a redevelopment site, the properties are already served with the necessary utilities and facilities.
Any relocation/replacement costs will be borne by the developer.

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in
the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; and
The proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendations to
redevelop the site as a mixed use project with both residential and retail components that are
compatible with the existing downtown fabric.

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development
will promote the general welfare of the community.
The plan will redevelop a pivotal site that is strategically located between downtown and the Beloit
College campus. The PUD will allow the buildings to be closer to the sidewalk with parking to the
rear, which enhances walkability and is consistent with contemporary urban design principles.

Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan
Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations:

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed PUD is compatible with the adjacent high-density residential uses to the east and the
commercial uses to the south and west.

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.

6



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

The proposed PUD is a logical transition between the institutional district encompassing the Beloit
College campus, the multifamily district to the east, and the Central Business District to the west and
south.

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.
The subject property is suitable for the uses permitted in the R-4 district, but application of those
standards would result in a design similar to Scoville Apartments instead of the more urban PUD.

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
The subject property is located on the edge of the Central Business District, which has seen dramatic
investment and revitalization over the past decade. As a dense, walkable district with lots of new
stores & restaurants and thousands of recently created jobs, housing is in strong demand.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – PUD MASTER LAND USE PLAN:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land Use Plan for the
property located at 511 Public Avenue, subject to the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes the mixed use redevelopment of the vacant parcel located at 511 Public
Avenue into fourteen (14) row house units, a small (2,400 SF) commercial building, and an off-street
parking lot as shown on the attached PUD Plan.

2. The permitted uses shall include up to fourteen (14) dwelling units (owner-occupied or rental), along
with retail sales & service in the commercial building. The maximum building coverage shall be 20,000
square feet. The minimum building setback shall be zero, and the maximum building height shall be
four stories. The commercial building may have up to two wall signs of 40 square feet each.

3. The applicant has the option of subdividing the parking lot parcel from the mixed use parcel via 2-Lot
Certified Survey Map (CSM) in the future.

4. If the dwelling units are to be owner-occupied, a Condominium Plat is required.
5. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant shall obtain site plan and architectural approval,

which shall include a detailed review of all site, grading, utility, landscape, and lighting plans. The plans
shall address all of the Review Agent’s comments and concerns before approval.

6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning &
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from R-4, Moderate-Density Multifamily Residential District to PUD, Planned Unit
Development District, for the property located at 511 Public Avenue.

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, PUD - Master Land Use Plan, Building Renderings, Application, Public Notice,
and Mailing List.

7



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

8



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan

9



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

10



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

11



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

12



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

13



PUD-2019-04, HCP Rowhouses, 511 Public Avenue

14



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: September 18, 2019

Agenda Item: 3(c) & (d)

File Number: PUD-2019-05 & ZMA-2019-07

General Information

Applicant: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC

Owner: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC

Address/Location: 200 W. Grand Avenue & 525 Cross Street

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC has submitted an application for review
and consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan for the phased mixed use
redevelopment of the former Kerry production site located at 200 W. Grand Avenue and 525 Cross Street into
three buildings totaling up to 174 dwelling units, limited first floor commercial uses, and an off-street parking
lot. The applicant has also submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment from CBD-1, Central
Business District to PUD District. Although upper floor multifamily residential uses are allowed under the
current zoning classification, the PUD classification provides flexibility in building placement site design.

Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process: A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan. PUDs are processed in three stages:
Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final (Site) Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map
Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until
approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan.

The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the
adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for
development of the PUD. The PUD Final (Site) Plan is the document upon which building permits and other
applicable approvals are issued. The applicant must submit the detailed and technical information necessary
to demonstrate that all applicable standards, requirements, and conditions have been met.

Staff Analysis

Project Summary: The applicant is no longer pursuing adaptive use and remodeling of the original structure,
and has hired a contractor to demolish the structure to prepare the site for future building activity. The first
proposed 4-story building in this PUD includes up to 54 units and is located near the intersection of W. Grand
Avenue and Fourth Street. The building will include indoor parking, a rental office, and limited commercial
uses on the first floor. The proposed building includes permitted uses in the Central Business District. The
subject properties will need to be consolidated into one zoning lot for this project. In addition, existing sewer
mains that conflict with the proposed building location will need to be relocated. The proposed parking lot
includes one driveway on W. Grand Avenue, which will also lead to the covered parking entrance.

15



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

Existing Site Conditions: The subject property has been vacant and in various stages of demolition since the
applicant acquired it in 2014. The site has an extensive industrial history, and operated as a production plant
for Kerry Foods until it was sold to a metal salvaging company in 2011. The site is 3.21 acres in area and
includes frontage upon W. Grand Avenue, Broad Street, the bike path, and the Rock River.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The bike path and a historic church are located to the west of the subject
property and are zoned PLI, Public Lands & Institutions. The Central Business District (CBD) extends to the
North and East of the subject property and includes a mixture of commercial uses and public parking areas.

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan: In anticipation of the proposed redevelopment, Planning
staff recently submitted an application requesting an amendment to the Downtown Beloit Future Land Use
Map (Map 9) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan, from Production to Planned Mixed Use:
Office/Residential above retail. The Plan Commission previously recommended approval of this amendment,
which is scheduled for City Council review on September 17, 2019.

Zoning Ordinance Requirements:
Density/Intensity and Dimensional Standards: The applicant has requested a zero-setback development,
which will allow the building to be located near the sidewalk with surface parking in the rear. This is
consistent with the setbacks, or lack thereof, in the Central Business District. The proposed density is 174
units on 3.21 acres or 54.2 units per acre. There is no maximum density in the CBD. The proposed
development includes open space in excess of the 15% required for PUD projects.

Building Design: The proposed buildings are four (4) stories in height, and include an industrial-inspired
design including masonry exteriors, large windows, loft-style units, and legacy signage. This project is the
first significant addition of market-rate rental housing in downtown Beloit since the Phoenix building
opened in 2013.

Parking and Loading Requirements: According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, off-street
parking is not required in the CBD, which is designed to promote walkability and to direct vehicles to
municipal parking lots. However, the applicant is voluntarily providing first-floor covered parking for
about half of the proposed dwelling units, and a large off-street parking lot for a total of at least two
hundred (200) parking stalls.

Review Agent Comments: The review agents have reviewed the proposed PUD and offered the following
comments:

• AT&T: There are existing facilities on the property. Any relocation will be compensable.

• Alliant Energy: The first two buildings will require relocation of existing electrical cables at the
developer’s cost.

• Fire Department: Due to the proposed population density and limited access due to the river and
bluff, a second means of access is requested. Note: Planning staff and the Fire Inspector met with the
applicant, who has agreed to incorporate a pedestrian plaza or walkway that will double as a fire lane
between buildings one and two into the final design.

• Engineering: The developer will need to comply with DNR water quality standards. All public
sidewalks, whether existing or new, shall meet ADA and PROWAG standards. Utility easements and a
Development Agreement are required for the utility main relocations. Detailed utility comments have
been shared with the design team for incorporation into the site plan submittal. 16



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria: Applications may be approved if the following criteria are met:

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict
application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based on the purpose and intent
of this chapter.
The proposed PUD includes exceptional urban design and constructing three separate buildings
provides better utilization of a site with limited street frontage. An equivalent number of units in
only one building would require a high-rise tower with extensive surface parking.

2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300.
The proposed PUD will provide for efficient use of public utilities and vacant land, and will be an
attractive addition to Beloit’s bustling downtown district.

3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed;
As a redevelopment site, the properties are already served with the necessary utilities and facilities.
Any relocation/replacement costs will be borne by the developer.

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in
the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; and
The proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendations to
redevelop the site as a mixed use project with both residential and retail components that are
compatible with the existing downtown fabric. The proposed development will create much-needed
housing for the nearby Ironworks District.

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development
will promote the general welfare of the community.
The plan will redevelop a pivotal site that is located within walking distance of Ironworks, downtown
Beloit restaurants and shops, the Transit Center, and is located on the bike path with river views. The
proposed development is the exact type of housing that will attract young professionals to live in the
City of Beloit.

Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan
Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations:

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed PUD is compatible with the adjacent institutional and commercial uses.

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.
The proposed PUD is consistent with both the permitted uses and design principles in the CBD.

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification.
The subject property is suitable for the uses allowed in the CBD, but an equivalent amount of dwelling
units and floor space would require a high-rise tower.

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
The subject property is located on the edge of the Central Business District, which has seen dramatic
investment and revitalization over the past decade. As a dense, walkable district with lots of new
stores & restaurants and thousands of recently created jobs, housing is in strong demand.

17



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – PUD MASTER LAND USE PLAN:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land Use Plan for the
properties located at 200 W. Grand Avenue and 525 Cross Street, subject to the following conditions:

1. This approval authorizes the phased mixed use redevelopment of the former production site located at
200 W. Grand Avenue and 525 Cross Street into three buildings totaling up to 174 dwelling units,
limited first floor commercial uses, and an off-street parking lot as shown on the attached PUD Plan.

2. The permitted uses shall include up to two hundred (200) dwelling units, along with first floor uses that
are permitted in the CBD. The maximum building coverage shall be fifty percent (50%) of the area of
the zoning lot. The minimum building setback shall be zero, and the maximum building height shall be
four stories. Each building may have up to one wall sign of 80 square feet each.

3. Prior to site plan approval, the applicant shall administratively combine the subject properties into one
parcel. A Certified Survey Map (CSM) to clean-up the legal description is recommended, but not
required.

4. The Final (Site) Plan shall include a fire lane disguised as a pedestrian walkway or plaza between the
buildings along Broad Street as required by the Fire Department.

5. The buildings shall have individual street addresses to be assigned by the City Assessor.
6. If any of the proposed buildings will be constructed in the floodplain, they shall be elevated in

compliance with the floodplain ordinance.
7. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the applicant shall obtain site plan and architectural approval,

which shall include a detailed review of all site, grading, utility, landscape, and lighting plans. The plans
shall address all of the Review Agent’s comments and concerns before approval.

8. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning &
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the
zoning district classification from CBD-1, Central Business District - Core to PUD, Planned Unit Development
District, for the properties located at 200 W. Grand Avenue and 525 Cross Street.

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, PUD - Master Land Use Plan, Building Renderings, Application, Public Notice,
and Mailing List.

18



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

19



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan

20



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

21



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

22



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

23



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

24



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

25



PUD-2019-05, HCP Apartments, 200 W. Grand Ave

26


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-1712 - Attachment
	2018-1713 - Attachment
	2018-1715 - Attachment

